AGENDA

TUSAYAN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
PURSUANT TO AR.S. § 38-431.02 & §38431.03

Wednesday, April 19, 2017 at 6:00pm
TUSAYAN TOWN HALL BUILDING
845 Mustang Drive, Tusayan Arizona

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Tusayan Town Council and to the public
that the Tusayan Town council will hold a meeting open to the public on Wednesday, April 19, 2017 at the Tusayan
Town Hall Building. if authorized by a majority vote of the Tusayan Town Council, an execulive session may be held
immediately after the vote and will not be open to the public. The Council may vote to go into executive session
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03.A.3 for legal advice concerning any matter on the agenda, including those items set
forth in the consent and regular agenda sections. The Town Council may change, In ils discussion, the order in which
any agenda items are discussed during the course of the meeting.

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation by contacting the Town Manager at (928) 638-
9909 as scon as possible.

As a reminder, if you are carrying a cell phone, electronic pager, computer, two-way radio, or other sound device, we
ash that you silence it at this time to minimize disruption of today's meeting.

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE
3. ROLL CALL One or two Council Members may attend by telephone

MAYOR CRAIG SANDERSON COUNCILOR DAVID CHAVEZ
VICE MAYOR BECKY WIRTH COUNCILOR AL MONTOYA
COUNCILOR JOHN SCHOPPMANN

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Members of the public may address the Council on items not on the printed agenda. The Council
may not discuss, consider or act upon any matler raised during public comment. Members of the
audience who wish to speak to the Council on an item listed as Public Hearing should complete a
Request to Speak Card and turn it into the Town Clerk. Comments will be limited to three minutes
per person.

5. CEREMONIAL AND/OR INFORMATIONAL MATTERS

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Items on the consent agenda are routine in nature and will be acted on with one motion and one vote.
Members of the council or staff may ask the mayor to remove any item from the consent agenda {o
be discussed and acled upon separately.

A. Accounts Payable Billings

B. Minutes of the Town Council Meeting of April 5,2017
C. Fiscal year 2017, Q1 financial report
D

. Fiscal year 2017, Q2 financial report



7. ACTION ITEMS

A. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of agreement to construct
basebhall/softball, soccer field, rubberized track, bleachers, lighting, fencing,
roadway realignment, and other necessary infrastructure for completion of the
Sports Complex

B. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval for Town Manager to award
contract for Trail Master Plan, Design and Construction upon completion of bid
process

C. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of Ordinance 2017-02, to amend
Ordinance 2012-04, to include a revision of allowable structural height limits in all
zones within the town limits

D. Consideration, discussion, and possible acceptance of Town of Tusayan FY 2016
audited financial statements, FY 2016 Annual Expenditure Limitation Report,
Proposed Adjusting Journal Entries, and Findings and Recommendations Letter

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Discussion of Council meeting length and frequency
B. Discussion of Community Wellness meeting issues

C. Discussion of broadband and fiber development
D.

Discussion of Ten X affordable housing project

9. REPORTS
A. Town Manager

i. Update on the Planning and Zoning Commission

ii. Update of Administrative actions and issues
B. Council Members
C. Mayor
10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

11. MOTION TO ADJOURN

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE
The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at the General Store in Tusayan,
Arizona on this 14th day of April, 2017, at am/ pm in accordance with the statement filed by the
Tusayan Town Council.

Signature of person posting the agenda
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TUSAYAN TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02 & §38-431.03

Wednesday, April 5, 2017 at 6:00pm
TUSAYAN TOWN HALL BUILDING
845 Mustang Drive, Tusayan Arizona

TOWN COUNCIL SUMMARIZED MINUTES

. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Sanderson called the meeting to order at 6:05pm and the Pledge of
Allegiance was recited.

. MOMENT OF SILENCE

Mayor Sanderson asked for a moment of silence.

. ROLL CALL

MAYOR CRAIG SANDERSON

VICE MAYOR BECKY WIRTH
COUNCILOR DAVID CHAVEZ - excused
COUNCILOR AL MONTOYA
COUNCILOR JOHN SCHOPPMANN

Also present were: Eric Duthie, Town Manager
Melissa M. Drake, Town Clerk

. CALL TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

None

. CEREMONIAL AND/OR INFORMATIONAL MATTERS

A. Tusayan Mayor’'s Proclamation of April as Fair Housing Month
Mayor Sanderson read the proclamation which was in the packet.

B. Acknowledgement of GCNPS note of appreciation for support of
community luau

Manager Duthie read a thank you note from Grand Canyon National Park.
C. Acknowledgement of letters of appreciation from Cub Scouts

Manager Duthie highlighted some of the thank you notes from the Cub Scout
Pack.

. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Accounts Payable Billings



B. Minutes of the Town Council Meetings on 3/1/17 and 3/22/17

Vice Mayor Wirth made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilor
Montoya seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

7. ACTION ITEMS

A. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of executive session
pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03. A.3 and A.4 for legal advice concerning the
Kaibab Forest Service denial of ground lease permit at the Tusayan
Administrative Site

At 6:14pm, Councilor Montoya made a motion to exit the public meeting and
enter into executive session. Vice Mayor Wirth seconded the motion and it
passed on unanimous vote.

The Council discussed the ground lease denial with Town Attorney Bill Sims.

At 6:48pm, Mayor Sanderson made a motion to exit executive session and re-
enter the public meeting. Councilor Schoppmann seconded the motion and it
passed on unanimous vote.

The Council took a break until 6:57pm.

B. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of action concerning the
Kaibab Forest Service denial of ground lease permit at the Tusayan
Administrative Site

Manager Duthie described documents in the packet regarding this item. He
stated that the District Ranger placed a moratorium on housing in the
administrative site for anyone other than Forest Service personnel.

Vice Mayor Wirth made a motion to direct the Mayor to prepare a letter to the
Forest Service Supervisor further explaining the use of and our need for the unit
for law enforcement housing. Councilor Montoya seconded the motion and it
passed on unanimous vote.

C. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of Resolution No. 2017-
02 expressing support for Grand Canyon Infrastructure funding

Manager Duthie described the issue regarding infrastructure needs in the
National Park System.

Councilor Montoya made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2017-02
expressing support for Grand Canyon Infrastructure funding. Vice Mayor Wirth
seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

D. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of designee to Northern
Arizona Council of Government (NACOG) Regional Council

Manager Duthie explained the function of NACOG and the Regional Council and
noted that Councilor Rueter held the seat until his resignation.
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Councilor Montoya made a motion to designate Vice Mayor Wirth as the Tusayan
representative to the NACOG Regional Council. Councilor Schoppmann
seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of designee to Northern
Arizona Council of Government (NACOG) Economic Development Council

Manager Duthie explained the function of the NACOG Economic Development
Council and noted that Councilor Rueter held the seat until his resignation. He
stated that the director contacted him and requested that he be on the Council.
Manager Duthie stated that he would be willing if the Council so desired.

Councilor Montoya made a motion to designate Manager Duthie as the Tusayan
representative to the NACOG Economic Development Council. Vice Mayor Wirth
seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

Manager Duthie stated that he asked Chamber Director Laura Chastain to serve
on the NACOG Tourism Committee and she has accepted.

. Consideration, discussion, and possible ratification of Town of Tusayan
renewal of investment of $247,000 into a one year term new FDIC insured
Certificates of Deposit (CD) number 32574, finalized on March 30, 2017

Manager Duthie stated that this investment was renewed as a one year COD
which continues the rotation schedule as the Council has directed.

Councilor Montoya made a motion to ratify the Town of Tusayan renewal of
investment of $247,000 into a one year term new FDIC insured Certificates of
Deposit (CD) number 32574, finalized on March 30, 2017. Councilor
Schoppmann seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

. Consideration, discussion, and possible ratification of Town of Tusayan of
investment of $247,000, into a five year term FDIC insured Certificates of
Deposit (CD) number 33306, finalized on March 30, 2017. Funds from the
Town existing money market account were used to supplement this
purchase, totaling $140,240.56

Manager Duthie stated that this investment was a combination of a money
market account and funds wired from the Town bank account to purchase
another CD.

Vice Mayor Wirth made a motion to ratify the Town of Tusayan investment of
$247,000, into a five year term FDIC insured Certificates of Deposit (CD) number
333086, finalized on March 30, 2017, Funds from the Town existing money market
account were used to supplement this purchase, totaling $140,240.56. Councilor
Schoppmann seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

. Consideration, discussion, and possible ratification of Town Council
authorization for Mayor and Councilmember to wire transfer $110,000 from
the Town bank account to Bank of New York/Pershing LLC on April 3, 2017,
to pay for the purchase of the Certificates of Deposit (CD’s), finalized on
March 30, 2017; And authorize a letter to be signed by the Town Council
approving the wire transfer, in compliance with Town fiscal policies.

Page3of 7



Mayor Sanderson stated that the transfer was $115,000 instead of $110,000.

Councilor Montoya made a motion to ratify the authorization for Mayor and
Councilmember to wire transfer $115,000 from the Town bank account to Bank
of New York/Pershing LLC on April 3, 2017, to pay for the purchase of the
Certificates of Deposit (CD’s), finalized on March 30, 2017; And authorize a letter
to be signed by the Town Council approving the wire transfer, in compliance with
Town fiscal policies. Vice Mayor Wirth seconded the motion and it passed on
unanimous vote.

Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of Team Fishel
professional services contract for installation of conduit and fiber along
Highway 64 (both sides), in preparation for future fiber provision, with a
cost of $454,002.61

Manager Duthie stated that ADOT has approved a permit to construct and install
conduit and fiber on both sides of Highway 64.

Vic McKinney and Tyler Dodson with Team Fishel presented their proposal to the
Council for installing conduit and fiber from roundabout to roundabout all within
ADOT right-of-way. This would be phase 1 of the project. Phase 2 would be the
airport and phase 3 would be the Forest Service Compound. The Council
discussed this project with Mr. McKinney and Mr. Dodson.

Mr. McKinney clarified that the proposal is for conduit only, not for the fiber. He
stated that whichever company brings fiber to the Town will have its own
specification for the fiber.

Clarinda Vail had questions regarding drawings of the project relating to Red
Feather Lodge and Plaza Bonita Restaurant. She also stated concern over
sound disturbance which could affect guests. The Team Fishel representatives
stated their plan to consult with business owners as the project progresses.

Councilor Montoya made a motion to approve a Team Fishel proposal for
installation of conduit for future fiber along Highway 64 (both sides), in
preparation for future fiber provision, with a cost of $454,002.61. Councilor
Schoppmann seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

. Consideration, discussion, and possible approval of Hellas Construction
agreement to construct baseball/sofiball, soccer field, rubberized track,
bleachers, lighting, fencing, roadway realignment, and other necessary
infrastructure for completion of the Sports Complex. Hellas Construction
is an approved vendor for cooperative government purchasing.

Manager Duthie requested that this item be tabled at this time since the
agreement has not been finalized.

The Council took no action.
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8. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Discussion of E-Rate fiber development opportunity

Manager Duthie stated that the Town is working with the Grand Canyon School
District on applying for these monies from the Arizona Corporation Commission.
He also stated that our consultant, Bill Bolin, was here for 2 days this week
working on possible options for broadband improvements.

The Council discussed possible options with Kevin Hartigan regarding use of
APS existing poles and rights of way.

B. Discussion of Ten X affordable housing project

Manager Duthie stated that studies are in process and Westland Resources may
be here for the April 19" meeting to discuss the project.

C. Discussion of Community Wellness meeting issues

Manager Duthie stated that a meeting was held today and it was well attended.

Issues which were discussed included:

- Suicide prevention program

- CERT training will be in August

- Rotary Interact club at the High School is active and discussing creation
of a youth council

- Computer lab for school tutoring will begin this Friday, April 7*

- Crosswalk safety was discussed and we're having difficulty finding a
Contractor for this project

- VA services are being handled by the Chamber

- The Clinic is holding instructional sessions about services in the area

- Resume development session on Monday at the Albright Training Facility

- Food Bank services

- Rotary Easter Egg Hunt is Saturday, April 15, at 10am and the Kaibab
Learning Center will be holding a pancake breakfast that same day from
7am to 10am in the School Multipurpose Room

9. REPORTS
A. Town Manager
i. Update on the Planning and Zoning Commission
There will be a meeting on April 18th.
ii. Update of Administrative actions and issues

Manager Duthie stated that we have put out a request for quotes from trail
building companies for a trail system in Tusayan.

The Justice Court uses the Council Chambers as a local court room on the
second Tuesday of each month which makes it easier for community
members to appear before the court.
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GCU sports management students have been selected by Delaware North for
summer internships.

Town Hall has a small conference room available to the public for small
meetings.

B. Council Members

Vice Mayor Wirth stated that she attended the job fair at the school today and
was pleased with participation. This was the largest turnout since Tusayan
businesses were included.

C. Mayor

Mayor Sanderson stated that he spoke with County Supervisor Art Babbott who
may have some funds available for inprovements to the Sports Complex.

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Councilor Schoppmann requested a discussion of limiting meeting times or reducing
meetings to one per month.

Clarinda Vail reminded the Council that Councilor Rueter had requested discussion
of the refusal of CenturyLink to move their lines underground. Vice Mayor Wirth
requested that the topic be added to a future agenda.

11. MOTION TO ADJOURN

Councilor Montoya made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:49pm. Vice Mayor
Wirth seconded the motion and it passed on unanimous vote.

Craig Sanderson, Mayor Date
ATTEST:

Melissa M. Drake, Town Clerk
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CERTIFICATION

State of Arizona )
) ss.
Coconino County )

I, Melissa M. Drake, do hereby certify that | am the Town Clerk of the Town of Tusayan,
County of Coconino, State of Arizona, and that the above minutes are a true and correct
summary of the meeting of the Council of the Town of Tusayan held on April 5, 2017. |
further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and that a quorum was present.

DATED this 5™ day of April, 2017

Town Clerk
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Date: April 19,2017
To: Mayor and Town Council

From: Planning staff

Subject: Ordinance No0.2017-01 (Zone Amendment No. 2017-01)

Recommendation: That Town Council pass and adopt Ordinance No. 2017-01; an ordinance
of the Town Council of the Town of Tusayan amending Ordinance No. 2012-04 (Zoning

Ordinance) by approving Zone Amendment No. 2017-01.

The following tables reflect the proposed changes in height limits within the Town of
Tusayan.  All wording/numbers that are struck-through are to be eliminated, all
wording/numbers in bold italicized print are to be added, and all other wording/numbers

remain unchanged.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: G, AR, AND RR ZONES

Section 9.3 (C). General Requirements.

(1) Fhe follewing Requirements are & minimum-unless-otherwise-noted as follows:

General Requirements G AR RR
Build'in.g.site, net area iq acres'(or as specified 10 ] i
per division (B)(1) of this section

Distance between buildings, in feet 10 10 10
Dwelling unit per parcel, maximum 1 1 1
Front yard, in feet 30 25 25
Lot coverage, maximum 30% 35% 35%
Lot depth, in feet 300 150 150
Lot width, in feet 300 100 100
Off-street parking spaces - per dwelling unit 1 1 1
Rear yard, in feet 30 20 20
Side yard - interior, in feet 20 10 10
Side yard - street side, in feet 30 15 15
Structure height, maximum, in feet 40 65 35 65 35 65

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building
for any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height
is approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements

of the Federal Aviation Administration.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: R ZONES

Section 10.2 (C) General Requirements.
(1) Residential Single-Family Zones.

(a) Thefollowing Requirements are minimin-enless-otherwise-noted as follows:

General Requirements RS-6000| RS-10000 | RS-18000 RS-36000
Building Structure height, maximum in ft. 35 65 35 65 35 65 35 65
Building site, net area in square feet 6,000 10,000 18,000 36,000
Density, maximum dwelling units per acre 6.0 4.0 2.0 1.0
Distance between buildings, in feet 10 10 10 10
Dwelling unit per parcel, maximum 1 1 1 1
Front yard, in feet 20 20 25 25
Lot coverage, maximum 40% 40% 35% 35%
Lot depth, in feet 100 100 150
Lot width, in feet 60 80 100 120
Off-street parking spaces, per dwelling unit 2 2 2 2
Rear yard, in feet 20 20 25 25
Side yard - interior, in feet 5 10 10 20
Side yard - street side, in feet 10 10 15 20

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building
for any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit Jor additional height
is approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements

of the Federal Aviation Administration.

Section 10.2 (C) General Requirements.

(2) Residential Multiple-Family Zones.

(a) The fellewing Requirements are minimum-unless-otherwise noted as follows:

General Requirements RM-10/4 RM-20/4
Building Structure height, maximum in feet 35 65 40 65
Building site, net area, in acres 0.5 4
Covered off-street parking spaces per dwelling unit 2 1+ 1 open
Open guest parking spaces Add 10% of total spaces
Density, maximum dwelling units per acre 10 2
Distance between buildings, in feet 10 i
Front yard, in feet 20 2
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Lot coverage, maximum 45% 50
Lot depth, in feet 100 20
Lot width, in feet 100 15
Off-street parking spaces for 2-family dwellings, per 2 2
dwelling unit

Rear yard, in feet 20 2
Side yard - interior, in feet 10 1
Side yard - street side, in feet 15 2

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building
for any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height
is approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements

of the Federal Aviation Administration.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: COMMERCIAL ZONES

Section 11.2 (C) General Requirements.

(1) The following Requirements are minimums-unless-otherwise-noted as follows:

|General Requirements

CN-2/A CG-10,000 | CH-10,000
Building site, square feet or acres 2 acres 10,000 sf | 10,000 sf
Front yard, in feet 20 20
Lot coverage, maximum 35%
Lot depth, in feet 150 100
Lot width, in feet 200 50
Off-street parking See § 15
Rear yard, in feet 10 0
Side yard - interior and rear yard,
in fee{, adjacent to G, AR, Rll-{{, RS 20 20 AV
Side yard - interior, in feet 10 - -
Side yard - street side, in feet 10 20 20
Structure height, maximum, in feet 3565 3565 40 65

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building
for any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height
is approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements

of the Federal Aviation Administration.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: INDUSTRIAL ZONES
Section 12.2 (C) General Requirements. Thefollewing Requirements are mintmum-unless
SECtion ( [) q ag Req

as follows:

bet:eral Requirements MP-20,000 M-1-10,000 M-2-6,000
Building Structure height, maximum in feet 40 65 48 65 4065
Building site, in square feet 20,000 10,000 6,000
Front yard, in feet 20 10 1
Lot coverage, maximum 60% 60% -
Lot depth, in feet 150 100 10
Lot width, in feet 100 100 6
Off-street parking See § 15
Rear yard, in feet 20 - -
Side yard, in feet 15 - -
Side yard - street side, in feet 20 10 10

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building
for any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional
height is approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the

requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: MHP ZONE

Section 13.1-5 General Requirements

(A) Fhefollowing Requirements are minimum-unless otherwise noted ay follows:

General Requirements

Distance between buildings 10 feet
Dwelling units per lot, parcel or manufactured home space, maximum 1

Front yard 10 feet
Lot coverage, maximum 40%

I " :

Lot or parcel size in square feet for parks and rental spaces 4,000
Lot or parcel size in square feet for subdivided lots 5,000
Structure height, maximum 20 65 feet
Off-street parking spaces 2 spaces
Rear yard 10 feet
Sidesmsd

Side yard, interior 5 feet
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Side yard, street 10 feet
Subdividedd

Minimum width, subdivided lot 50 feet

Minimum depth, subdivided lot 100 feet

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building for
any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height is

approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements of
the Federal Aviation Administration.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: PRD ZONE

Section 13.2-3 (D (1) The following specific site development requirements shall apply to a
PRD in any zone; these requirements are minimum-unless-etherwise-noted-as follows:

General Requirements

Building Structure height, maximum, in feet 3565
Dwelling unit size, square feet 1,150
Front yard, in feet 25
Guest parking spaces per unit, uncovered 1
Parking spaces per unit, covered 1
Rear yard, in feet 20
Side yard - interior, in feet 20
Side yard - street side, in feet 25
Site area, in acres 10
Site coverage, maximum 40%
Site frontage on public street, in feet 200

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building for
any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height is

approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements of the
Federal Aviation Administration.

Section 13.3 PC - PLANNED COMMUNTY ZONE

Section 13.3-5(D)(2) An accompanying text setting forth the land use regulations which

constitute the standard of development designed to govern those sections or areas specified in

the development plan. Such standards shall contain definitions and information concerning

requirements for building site coverage, building-heights building setbacks, off-street parking,

vehicular access, signing, lighting, storage, screening and landscaping, and any other
Page50f6



information which the Town Manager or designee shall require to ensure substantial compliance
with the purpose of the PC Zone.

Section 13.3-5(D) (6) The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base
of building shall be sixty-five (65) feet. However, the maxinium permitted height for any
structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height is approved
by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements of the Federal
Aviation Administration.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS: RMH ZONE
Section 13.11-3 (C) General Requirements.

(1) Fhefollowing Requirements are minimum-unless-otherwise-noted-as follows:

Building- Structural height, maximum in feet 35 65
Building site, net area in square feet 6,000
Density, maximum dwelling units per acre 6.0
Distance between buildings 10 feet
General Requirements

Front yard 15 feet
Lot coverage, maximum 40%
Lot depth 100 feet
Lot width 50 feet
Off-street parking 2 spaces
Rear yard 10 feet
Side yard 5 feet
Side yard, street side 10 feet

Note: The maximum permitted height measured from finished grade at base of building
for any structure may be exceeded provided a conditional use permit for additional height
is approved by the Town. The height limit for any structure is subject to the requirements
of the Federal Aviation Administration.

EXHIBIT
Ordinance No. 2017-01
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ORDINANCE NO. 2017-01

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF TUSAYAN AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-04
BY APPROVING ZONE AMENDMENT NO. 2017-01

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Tusayan has, at its meeting held on April 19,
2017, studied and considered Ordinance No. 2017-01 (Zone Amendment No. 201 7-01); and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the Town to enact
these amendments to Ordinance No. 2017-01 in order to enhance the quality of life and to protect the
health, safety, and welfare of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, a timely and properly noticed public hearing upon Zone Amendment No. 2017-01
(Ordinance No. 2017-01), was held by the Town Council during its meeting on April 19, 2017, at which
hearing evidence, oral and documentary, was admitted on behalf of said zone amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Tusayan, in a session
assembled on the 18 day of April, 2017, approved Resolution No. 2017-01 (Zone Amendment 2017-01),

a Resolution of the Planning and Zoning Commission recommending that the Town Council approve
Zone Amendment No. 2017-01.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF TUSAYAN DOES
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: ALLOWABLE HEIGHT LIMITS
§ 4.1 — Section 9.3 (C) 1. Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished grade
at base of building in the “G” zone District from 40 feet to 65 feet, in the AR Zone District from
35 feet to 65 feet, and in the RR Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, excepting that said height
limits may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a greater height by the
Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the requirements of the
Federal Aviation Administration.

§ 4.2 — Section 10.2 (C) 1. (a). Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished
grade at base of building in the RS-6000 Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, in the RS-10000
Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, in the RS-18000 Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, and
in the RS-36000 Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, excepting that said height limits may be
exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a greater height by the Town of Tusayan;
and provided that any such height limit be subject to the requirements of the Federal Aviation
Administration.

§ 4.3 — Section 10.2 (C). Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished grade
at base of building in the RM/A Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, and in the RM-20/A Zone
District from 40 feet to 65 feet, excepting that said height limits may be exceeded upon approval
of a conditional use permit for a greater height by the Town of Tusayan; and provided that any
such height limit be subject to the requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration.
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§ 4.4 — Section 11.2 (C) 1. Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished
grade at base of building in the CN-2/A Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, in the CG-10,000
Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, and in the CH-10,000 Zone District from 40 feet to 65 feet,
excepting that said height limits may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a
greater height by the Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the
requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration.

§ 4.5 — Section 12.2 (C). Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished grade
at base of building in the MP-20,000 Zone District from 40 feet to 65 feet, in the M-1-10,0600
Zone District from 40 feet to 65 feet, and in the M-2-6,000 Zone District from 40 feet to 65 feet,
excepting that said height limits may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a
greater height by the Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the
requirements of the Federal Aviation Administration.

§ 4.6 — Section 13.1-5. Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished grade
at base of building in the MHP Zone District from 20 feet to 65 feet, excepting that said height
limit may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a greater height by the
Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the requirements of the
Federal Aviation Administration.

§ 4.7 — Section 2-3 (D) (1). Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished
grade at base of building in the PRD Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, excepting that said
height limit may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a greater height by
the Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the requirements of
the Federal Aviation Administration.

§ 4.8 — Section 13.3-5 (D) (6). Establish a maximum permitted height measured from finished
grade at base of building in the PC Zone District to sixty-five (65) feet, excepting that said height
limit may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a greater height by the
Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the requirements of the
Federal Aviation Administration.

§ 4.9 — Section 13.11-3 (C) (1). Increase the maximum allowable height measured from finished
grade at base of building in the RMH Zone District from 35 feet to 65 feet, excepting that said
height limit may be exceeded upon approval of a conditional use permit for a greater height by
the Town of Tusayan; and provided that any such height limit be subject to the requirements of
the Federal Aviation Administration.

SECTION II: SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, phrase or portion of this Ordinance No. 2017-01
(Zone Amendment 2017-01) or the application to any person or place is held to be unconstitutional
or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this zone amendment. The Town Council declares that it would have
recommended adoption of these revisions to Ordinance No. 2017-01 and each section, subsection,
sentence, clause, or phrase of this zone amendment in spite of the fact that one or more of the same
be declared unconstitutional or invalid.
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SECTION IIl: ADMINISTRATIVE REVISIONS
The Zoning Administrator of the Town of Tusayan is hereby given the authority to make any
non-substantive changes to the Zoning Ordinance. These non-substantive changes will include
such things as grammatical errors, error in mathematical calculations, erroneous references from
one section of the Code to another section, changes in formatting, or any other such changes
provided a report is given to the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Town Council
indicating which changes are to be made.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 19* DAY OF April, 2017.

Craig Sanderson, Mayor

REVIEWED BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Eric Duthie, Town Manager Bill Sims, Town Attorney
ATTEST

Melissa Drake, Town Clerk
CERTIFICATION
1, Melissa Drake, hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. 2017-01 was passed and
adopted by the Town of Tusayan at a scheduled meeting on the 19™ day of April, 2017, by the
following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTENTIONS:

Melissa Drake, Town Clerk
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March 14, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Tusayan, Arizona

We have audited the financial statements of the povernmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Tusayan, Arizona (thc Town) for the year cnded
Junc 30, 2016, and have issucd our report thercon dated March 14, 2017. Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards and Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related
to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
engagement letter dated August 4, 2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you
the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the sclection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Town are described in Note | to the financial statements. No new
accounting policics werc adopted and the application of existing policics were not changed during fiscal
year 2016.

We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting cstimates arc an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting cstimates arc particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates afTecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of depreciation expense is based on the uscful lives of the
underlying assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
depreciation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferved inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, management’s estimates have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS).
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The Town’s net pension liability for ASRS was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using procedures to update and roll
forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, to the measurement
date of June 30, 2015. The key factors and assumptions used to develop the valuation and the accrual
appear rcasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The financial statement disclosures arc neutral, consistent, and clear

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identificd during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. A

list of adjustments has been provided to management and management has corrected all such
misstatements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that arc included in the management
representation letter dated March 14, 2017,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of anditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional siandards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a varicty of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

Other Information in Documents Comtaining Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriatc and complete in rclation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.



This information is intended solely for the use of Town Council and management of the Town and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyonc other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

it bty PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
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Findings and Recommendations
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Tusayan, Arizona

Professional standards require that we communicate, in writing, deficiencies in internal controt
over financial reporting that are considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that
are identified during the audit of the financial statements. We wish to commend the Town for
their administrative achievements and oversight of the Town’s accounting and budget system.
During our audit of the funds of the Town of Tusayan for the fiscal ycar ended June 30, 2016 we
noted a few areas that may need corrective action in order for the Town to be in compliance with
laws and regulations and we found a few circumstances that, if improved, would strengthen the

Town’s accounting system and contro! over its assets. These items are discussed below for your
consideration.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:

Significant Deficiencies:

2011-001, Year-end Accounting (prior vear reworded. reissued)

Criteria: Aunditing standards indicate that the identification by the auditor of
misstatements in the financial statements may be a significant deficiency in the
Town’s internal controls.

Condition: Accruals and adjustments to the general ledger were required that
were not initially identificd by the Town’s intcrnal controls.

Cause: Procedures for year-end adjustments may need to be revised or improved
in order to properly identify certain adjustments for new accounting standards or
other non-routine adjustments.

Effect: The Town’s financial statements would not have been fairly stated in all
material respects without the adjustments. Adjustments with a net income effect
of approximately $87,000 were required.

Recommendations: We rccommend that management review the audit
adjustments in order to understand each adjustment and continue efforts to
improve controls over year-end accounting and identify accruals and adjustments
prior to the audit.
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2011-002.

2011-003.

Sceregation of Duties (prior year reworded, reissued)

Criteria: An effective internal control structure, including adequate segregation
of duties, should be implemented in order to properly safeguard Town asscts.

Condition: The samc individual who recorded cash receipts and cash
disbursements in the accounting system also, prepared cash disbursements and
prepared bank reconciliations. In addition, there was no documentation of Town
Manager approval of a time card that was sampled.

Cause: The size of the Town’s administrative staff prohibits the complete
segregation of dutics within its accounting function.

Effect: A material misstatement, duc to fraud or error, may not be prevented or
detected in a timely manner.

Recommendations: The Town Council and management should consider ways
that segregation of duties can be improved or additional mitigating controls can
be established within the accounting and administrative functions as the Town
continues to grow and additional staff arc considercd necessary. In addition,
review and approval should be documented prior to payment of payroll or other
liabilities.

Policies and Procedures (prior year reworded, reissucd)

Criteria: A Policy and Procedurc Manual is important in cstablishing the
financial policies and procedures, flow of documents, job descriptions,
responsibilities and duties, and general operating environment of any type of
organization.

Condition: The Town does not have a complete Policy and Procedures Manual.

Cause: The Town is still relatively new and the size of the administrative staff
hampers the Town's ability to complete projects such as these.

Effect: Without this document there could be confusion in regards to Town
policies and expectations of its employces, management and the Town Council
which in turn could weaken controls over compliance, financial reporting and the
safeguarding of assets.

Recommendations: We did note that the Town prepared and adopted a Fiscal
Policy and Procedurc Manual during the year. We recommend that the Town
continue to develop and implement a Policies and Procedures Manual that
addresses such items as: budgetary procedures, capital asset management
procedures, personnel duties and responsibilities, records retention, EEOC, Drug
Free Workplace, rclated party, conflict of intercst, chart of organization,
compensation and fringe benefits and vacation and holiday compensation.



The Town may consider consulting with the Arizona League of Citics and Towns
or local governmental entities of similar size to obtain Policies and Procedures
manuals or materials that may help you in developing and implementing policies
and procedures specific to the Town.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS:

None noted

Responses

Please respond to the above Findings and Recommendations in letter form.

This report is intended solely for the information and usc of the Town Council, management, and
various federal and state agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is
not limited.

It has been a pleasure to be of service to the Town this past ycar. We would like to express special
thanks to all those who assisted us so efficiently in this year's audit. We invite you to ask questions
of us throughout the year as you feel necessary. We look forward to a continued professional
relationship.

Sinccrely,

it i, PLLC

HintonBurdick, PLLC
Flagstaff, Arizona
March 14, 2017
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Independent Accountants’ Report on AELR

The Auditor General of the State of Arizona and
The Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Tusayan, Arizona

We have cxamined the accompanying Annual Expenditure Limitation Report of the Town of Tusayan,
Arizona, for the year ended Junc 30, 2016. This report is the responsibility of the Town of Tusayan,
Arizona’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this report based on our
examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the report and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Annual Expenditure Limitation Report of the Town of Tusayan, Arizona, referred to
above presents, in all material respects, the information prescribed by the uniform expenditure reporting
system as described in Note 1.

e ity FULC
HintonBurdick, PLLC
March 14, 2017
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Annual Expenditure Limitation Report — Part I

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Economic Estimates Commission expenditurc limitation N/A
Voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation (Approved 8/26/2014) $ 6,129,000
Enter applicable amount from line | or line 2 $ 6,129,000

Amount subject to the expenditure limitation (total amount from Part 11,
Line C) 2,217,92]

Amount under (in excess of) the expenditure limitation (If excess
expenditures are reported, provide an explanation) § 3911079

I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge and belicf, that the information contained in this report is
accurate and in accordance with the requirements of the uniform expenditure reporting system.

Signature of Chief Fiscal Officer:

Name and Title: Eric Duthie, Town Manager

Telephone Number;  928-638-9909 Date:

See accompanying notes to the report.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report — Part II

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Governmental Entcrprisc Fiduciary
Description Funds Funds Funds Total
A. Amounts reported on the Reconciliation Line D S 2,217,921 $ 2,217,921

B. Less exclusions claimed:

L.

13,

14.

Bond proceeds

Debt service requirements on bonded indebtedness
Proceeds from other long-term obligations

Debl service requirements on other long-term obligations

Dividends, interest and gains on the sale or
redemption of investment sccuritics

Trustee or custodian

Grants and aid from the Federal government

Grants, aid, contributions, or gifts from a private agency,
organization, or individual except amounts received in
lieu of taxes

Amounts received from the State of Arizona

Quasi-external interfund transactions

Amounts accumulated for the purchase of land, and the
purchasc or construction of buildings or improvements

Highway user revenues in excess of those received in
fiscal yecar 1979-80

. Contracts with other political subdivisions
. Refunds, reimbursements, and other recoveries

. Voter-approved exclusions not identified above (attach

resolution}
Prior years carryforward

Total exclusions claimed

C. Amount subject to the expenditure limitation
(If an individual fund type amount is negative, reduce )
exclusions claimed to net to zero.)

$§ 2217921

§ 2217921

See accompanying notes to the report.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Reconciliation

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Governmental Enterprise Fiduciary
Description Funds Funds Funds Total

A. Total expenditures/expenses/deductions and applicable
other financing uses, special items, and extraordinary
items reported within the fund financial statcments $ 2217921 S - S

§ 2217921

B. Subtractions:
1. Items not requiring use of working capital:
Depreciation & - o -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . 4 - s
Bad debt expensc - - o i
Other postemployment benefits expense
Pension cxpense = - o 2
Claims incurred but not reported - - o -
Landfill closurc and postclosure care costs - o - E
2. Expenditures of scparate legal entities cstablished
under Arizona Revised Statutes - = ’ =
3. Present value of net minimum capital lease and instaliment
purchase contract payments recorded as expenditures
at inception of the agreements - 4 > a
4. Involuntary court judgments - - = -

5. Total subtractions e = - L

C. Additions:
L. Principal payments on long-term debt - - - -
2. Acquisition of capital assets - - = -
3. Amounts paid in the current year but reported
as expenses in previous years

Other postemployment benefits

Pension contributions

Claims previously recognized as IBNR

Landfill closure and postclosure care costs

4, Total additions o - = -

D. Amounts rcported on Part I, Line A § 2217921 ) - $ - S 2217921

See accompanying notes to the report.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Annual Expenditure Limitation Report
June 30, 2016

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Annual Expenditure Limitation Report (AELR) is presented as prescribed by the Uniform
Expenditure Reporting Systemt (UERS), as required by Arizona Revised Statutes §41-1279.07, and in
accordance with the voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation adopted August 26, 2014, as
authorized by the Arizona Constitution, Article IX, §20(9).

In accordance with the UERS requirements, a note to the AELR is presented below for any exclusion
claimed in part II and each subtraction or addition in thc Reconciliation that cannot be traced dircctly to
an amount reported in the annual fund-based financial statements. All references to financial statement
amounts in the following notes refer to the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for the Governmental Funds, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for

the Proprictary Funds, Statement of Cash Flows for the Proprietary Funds, and the Statement of Changes
in Fiduciary Net Position.

Note 2. Reconciliation Subtractions and Additions

The Town currently does not operate any Enterprise funds; thus, there are no sublractions or additions for
enterprise funds that would be applicable.

There are also no subtractions or additions applicable for any of the governmental activities for the
current year.

Note 3. Exclusions

Exclusions from local revenues, including those enumerated in the Constitution, may be taken against
alternative expenditure limitation only if such exclusions arc specifically identified in the resolution and
the publicity pamphiet. There are no such exclusions specifically identified.
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Independent Auditors” Report

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Tusayan, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Tusayan, Arizona, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statenrents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control rclevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITOL.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respunsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making thosc risk asscssments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposc of cxpressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the rcasonableness of significant accounting cstimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

CEDAR CITY - FLAGSTAFF - HURRICAKE - MESQUITE - PHOENIX - RICHFIELD -+ BT GEORGE

weme dronberdck.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of Tusayan as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial
position and the budgetary comparison for the General fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and pension schedules as listed in the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it 10 be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquirics of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquirics, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 14,
2017, on our consideration of the Town of Tusayan’s intemal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Tusayan’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/%m Alic.
HintonBurdick, PLLC

Flagstaff, Arizona
March 14, 2017



TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

As management of the Town of Tusayan (Town), we offer readers of the Town’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying basic
financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ Total asscts exceeded total liabilities (net position) by $11,717,383 at the end of the fiscal
year.

e Total revenues from all sources were $4,162,262 and the total cost of all Town programs was
$1,716,346 resulting in an increase of net position of $2,445,916.
Sales tax collections of $3,521,895 were up from the prior year amount of $3,359,167.
At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $9,626,228,

e At the end of the fiscal year, restricted fund balance for the HURF Fund was $182,176 and
unrestricted fund balance was $86,049.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of the
financial statements are: {1} Government-wide financial statements which include the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activitics. These statcments provide information about the
activities of the Town as a whole. (2) Fund financial statements tell how these services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements
also report the Town’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by
providing information about the Town’s most significant funds. (3) Notes to the financial
statements.

Reporting the Town as a Whele
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

A frequently asked question regarding the Town's financial health is whether the year’s activitics
contributed positively to the overal! financial well-being. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activitics in a
way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting uscd by most private-sector
companies. All of the current year’s revenues and cxpenses arc taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.



These two statements report the Town’s net position and its changes. Net position, the difference
between assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the Town’s financial health, or financial
position. Over time, an increasc or decrease in net position is an indicator of whether the financial
health is improving or deteriorating. However, it is important to consider other non-financial
factors such as changes in the condition of the Town’s roads to accurately assess the overall
health of the Town.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activitics, present information about the
following:

e Government activities — All of the Town’s basic services are considered to be governmental
activities, including gencral government, public safety, public works/strects, culture and
recreation, economic development, health and welfare and interest on long-term debt. Sales
taxes, State Revenue Sharing, intergovernmental revenues and charges for services finance
most of these activities.

e Proprictary activitics/Busincss type activitics — The Town currently docs not maintain any
proprictary activities; all activitics arc accounted for as governmental activities,

Reporting the Town’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds-—not
the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be cstablished by State law and by bond
covenants. However, management may establish many other funds which aid in the management
of moncy for particular purposes or mect legal responsibilities associated with the usage of
certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Town'’s two major funds usc the accounting approach
as cxplained below.

e Governmental funds — All of the Town's basic services are reported in governmental funds.
Governmental funds focus on how resources flow in and out with the balances remaining at
year-cnd that arc available for spending. These funds arc reported using an accounting
method called the modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Government fund information shows whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town’s programs.
We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activitics (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a
reconciliation included with the Basic Financial Statements and in footnote 2.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a uscful indicator of the Town’s financial position. The Town’s
combined assets exceed liabilities by $11.7 million as of June 30, 2016 as shown in the following
condensed statement of net position.

TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Statement of Net Position

Governmental
activities
6/30/2016 6/30/2015
Current and other asscts 3 10,046,905 § 8,107,250
Capital assets 1,894,945 1,289,333
Total assets 11,941,850 9,396,583
Deferred outflows of resources 273,000 24,093
Long-term liabilities outstanding 325,465 -
Other liabilitics 144,523 149,209
Total liabilitics 469,988 149,209
Deferred inflows of resources 27,485 -
Nel position:
Net investment in capital
assets 1,894,945 1,289,333
Restricted 182,176 144,567
Unrestricted 9,640,262 7,837,567
Total net position § 11,717,383 § 9271467

Governmental Activities

The cost of all Governmental activities this ycar was $1,716,346 as shown on the Changes in Net Position
statement on the following page. $32,503 of this cost was paid for by those who directly benefited from
the programs. $291,595 was subsidized by grants received from other governmental organizations for
both capital and operating activitics. Overall governmental program revenues, including
intergovernmental aid and fees for services were $324,098. General taxes, State Revenue Sharing,
investment earings and other revenuces totaled $3.8 million.

The Town’s programs include: General Government, Public Safety, Public Works/Streets, Culture &
Recreation, and Economic Development. Each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues gencrated by
the activities) are presented on the following page. The net cost shows the extent to which the Town’s
general revenues or taxes support cach of the Town’s programs.



TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Changes in Net Position

Governmental
activities

6/30/2016 6/30/2015
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 32,503 § 37,367
Operating grants and
contributions 61,286 58,189
Capital grants and
contributions 230,309 24,168
General revenues:
Taxes 3,599,133 3,433,118
Urban revenue sharing 180,600 181,584
Investment earnings 58,231 10,062
Other revenue/(expense) 200 -
Total revenues 4,162,262 3,744,488
Expenses:
General government 906,369 852,060
Public safety 616,808 429,261
Public works/Streets 51,795 24,091
Parks and recreation 74,761 101,739
Facilities and grounds 66,613 46,270
Total expenses 1,716,346 1,453,421
Increase (Decrease} in net assets
before transfers 2445916 2,291,067
Transfers - -
Net position, beginning 9,271,467 6,980,400
Net position, ending $ 11,717383 8§ 9271467

Total resources available during the ycar to finance governmental operations were $13.43 million
consisting of net position at July 1, 2015 of $9.27 mullion, program revenucs of $324,098 and General
Revenues of $3.84 million. Total Governmental Activities during the year were $1.72 million; thus
Governmental Net Position increased by $2.45 million to a total of $11.72 million.



The following graphs compare program expenses to program revenucs and provide a breakdown
of revenues by source for all governmental activities:

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
{inThousands)
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted carlier, the Town uses fund accounting to cnsurc and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Town’s financing requircments. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measurc of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $9,902,382, an increasc of $1,944,341in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 98% or $9,712,277 constitutes unassigned fund balance which is available for
spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance, or $182,176, is
restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has alrcady been
committed to pay for highways and streets.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance in the General fund was $9,626,228. As a measure of liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
The unassigned fund balance at year end represents 558% of the total General Fund fiscal year
2016 expenditures. During the year, the General Fund balance increased by $1,887,001. The
Town budgeted to increase the fund balance by 547,750. The excess revenucs over expenditures
(fund balance) are anticipated to be expended in future years.

The Highway User Revenue Fund has a total fund balance of $268,225, of which $182,176 is
restricted for road construction and maintenance. The fund balance increased during the current
year by $57,340.

Budgetary Highlights

General Fund revenues of $3,846,121 were $426,871 greater than budgeted revenues of
$3,419,250. Greater than anticipated revenue from city sales taxes was the major factor
contributing to this variance. General Fund expenditures were $1,412,380 less than budgeted. The

Town had many planned capital outlay and other expenditures that were not made during the
year.

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM LIABILITY ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The capital assets of the Town are those assets that are used in performance of Town functions
including infrastructure assets. Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements other than
buildings, equipment, vchicies, park facilities and roads. At the end of fiscal year 2016, net
capital assets of the govemment activities totaled $1,894,945. Significant capital asset additions
during fiscal year 2016 were the bathrooms and ADA parking at the park construction in progress
of $463,980, park development construction in progress of $62,627, a new vehicle of $28,150 and
affordable housing construction in progress of $110,047. Depreciation on capital asscts for
government activities is recognized in the Government-Wide financial statements. (See note 5 to
the financial statements.)



Long-Term Liabilities

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Tusayan had total long-term liabilitics
outstanding of $325,465 related to net pension liabilities (See note 6 and note 8 to the financial
statements).

NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS

In considering the Town Budget for fiscal year 2016/2017, the Town Council and management
were cautious as to the growth of revenues and cxpenditures. Overall governmental fund
operating expenditures were budgeted to increase slightly due to increased levels of service.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a gencral overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town'’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact: Town of Tusayan, Finance Department, P.O. Box 709, Tusayan, Arizona
86023.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016
Governmental
Activitics
Assets
Cash and investments 5 9,827,821
Receivables (net of allowance) 211,155
Prepaid expense 7,929
Capital assets {(net of accumulated depreciation):
Construction in progress 690,000
Buildings 601,948
Improvements other than buildings 440,120
Furniture, equipment & vehicles 162,877
Total assets 11,941,850
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pensions 273,006
Total deferred outflows of resources 273,006
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 144,523
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 325,465
Total liabilities 469,988
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions 27,485
Total deferred inflows of resources 27,485
Net investment in capital asscts 1,894,945
Restricted for:
Highways & strects 182,176
Unrestricted 9,640,262
Total net position $ 11,717,383

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN ARIZONA

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016
Total
General Highway Users Grants Governmental
Assets Fund Revenue Fund Fund Funds
Cash and investmenis S 9,567,248 $ 260,573 - % 9827821
Reccivables, net:

Intergovernmental 194,103 7,652 - 201,755
Due from other funds 9,400 - - 9,400
Prepaid insurance 7,929 - - 7,929

Total Asscts S 9,778,680 5 268,225 - S 10,046,905
Liabilities
Accounts Payable S 141,934 $ - ~3 S 141,934
Accrued wages and benefits 2,589 - - 2,589
Total Liabilities 144,523 - - 144,523
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:

Prepaid items 7,929 - - 7,929
Restricted for:

Public works/strects - 182,176 182,176
Unassigned 9,626,228 36,049 - 9,712,277

Total fund balances 9,634,157 268,225 - 9,902,382
Total Liabilitics and fund balances S 9,778,680 $ 268,225 - S 10,046,905

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN ARIZONA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Total fund balanccs - governinental funds $ 9,902,382

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Governmental capital assets $ 2,117,937
Accumulated depreciation (222,992)

1,804,945

Deferred outflows and inflows of resouces related to pensions
are applicabie to future reporting periods and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. 245,521

Some liabilities, including the net pension liability, are not due and
payable in the current period and, thercfore arc not reported
in the funds. (325,465)

Total nel position - governmental activitics $11,717,383

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN ARIZONA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES

Sales taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Interest revenue
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works/strects
Parks & recreation
Facilities & grounds
Capital outlay

Total expenditurces

Excess of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Total
General Highway Uscrs Grants Governmental
Fund Revenue Fund Fund Funds

$ 3,521,895 3 - TURIF S IRER 3752 11895
32,503 - - 32,503
233,292 85,832 230,309 549,433
58,231 - - 58,231
200 - - 200
3,846,121 85,832 230,309 4,162,262
765,821 - - 765,821
616,808 - - 616,808

- 28,492 - 28,492

83,306 - 463,979 547,285
66,613 - - 66,613
192,902 - - 192,902
1,725,450 28,492 463,979 2,217,921
2,120,671 57,340 {233,670) 1,944,341
- - 233,670 233,670
(233,670) - - (233,670)
(233,670) - 233,670 -
1,887,001 57,340 - 1,944,341
7,747,156 210,885 - 7,958,041
3 9,634,157 $ 268,225 - § 5,902,382

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN ARIZONA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Endcd June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activitics in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balanccs - total governmental funds $ 1,944,341

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated
uscful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the difference between
capital outlay and depreciation in the current period.
Capital outiay 5 679,621
Depreciation expense (72,875)

606,746
Pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds

when made. However, they arc reported as deferred outflows of resources

in the Statement of Net Position because the net pension liability is

measured a year before the Town's report date. Pension expense, which is

the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred

outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, is reported in the

Statement of Activities. (104,037)

Governmental funds report the cash, if any, received from the sale of capital
assets as revenue, However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
and related accumulated depreciation needs to be written off and any gain/loss

recognized. This is the amount of gain/loss recognized on the disposal of asscts. (1,134)

Change in net position of governmental activitics S 2,445,916

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN ARIZONA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Agency Fund
June 30, 2016
STILOC
Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Accounts receivable S 9,400
Total assets 9,400
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds S 9,400
Total liabilitics 9,400
NET POSITION
Net Position {Deficit) Held in Trust ¥ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.c., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange
transactions, are reported scparately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant cxtent on
fees and charges to external customers for support. Likewise, when applicable, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally scparate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable,

Reporting entity

The Town of Tusayan (Town) was incorporated in April 2010, under the provisions of Article 13,
Scctions 1 through 6, of the Constitution of Arizona and Title 9 of the Arizona Revised Statutes. The
Town is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five member council {councii). The council
members appoint the mayor and vice-mayor. The accompanying financial statements present the Town
and its component units, entitics for which the Town is considered to be financially accountable. Blended
component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations, even though they are
legally separate entitics. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds of the
primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the Town. Currently,
there are no blended or discretely presented component units reported with the Town.

Basis of presentation — government-wide financial statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements arc presented, they are interrelated. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds. Separate financial statcments
are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statcments.,

Basis of presentation - fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category—governmental and fiduciary—are presented. The cmphasis
of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual
governmental funds arc reported as scparate columns in the fund financial statcments,
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

The Highway User Revenue Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the Town’s share of
motor fuel tax revenues which are restricted for the maintaining, repairing, and upgrading of
streets.

The Grants Fund is used to account for the Town’s grant related financial resources and related
cxpenses.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Agency Fund accounts for assets held by the Town as an agent for a developer, the STILO
Group. The developer is paying for planning services and all application costs based upon an
agreement between the developer and the Town. These funds are custodial in nature (assets cqual
liabilitics) and do not involve measurcment of results of operations.

During the course of operations the Town has activity between funds for various purpescs. Any residual
balances outstanding at year end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other
,funds. While thesc balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain climinations are madc in the
preparation of the govemnment-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in
governmental activities {i.e., the governmental and agency funds) are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. in fund
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activitics are climinated so
that only the nct amount is included as transfers in the governmental activitics column.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The accounting and financia!l reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as curvent
financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement Jocus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics, Continued

The governmental fund financial statcments are reported using the cwrent financial resources
measurentent focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilitics of the current period. For this
purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences,
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources. -

Sales taxcs, other taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time
requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this
revenue source (within 60 days of year end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when
the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other cligibility requirements have been met, and
the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenuc source (within
60 days of year end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the Town.

Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position/fund balance

Deposits and investnents

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, deposits in
cash management pools that have the general characteristics of demand deposits accounts and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The Town’s
policy for investments is provided in Note 4. All investments are carried at fair value with unrealized
gains and losscs recorded as adjustments to interest earnings. Fair market values are based on quoted
market prices.

Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the fiscal year arc referred to as “due to” or “duc from other funds. Due to the nature of the accounts
receivable in governmental type activities, management does not consider an allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable necessary or material. Therefore, no allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable
is presented.

Prepaid items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and arc recorded as

prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
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Inventories

The cost of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than
when consumed.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (c.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental activity column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets arc defined by the Town as asscts with an initial,
individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years.

As the Town constructs or acquires additional capital assets cach period, they are capitalized and reported
at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially
amounts spent in relation to capital asscts that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or
increase its estimated useful life. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of donation.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as
part of the capitalized value of the asscts constructed.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, cquipment, and
infrastructure of the primary government arc depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 25 to 50 years
Machinery, vehicles and equipment 5 to 10 years
Storm drains and inlets 20 years
Infrastructure - Streets and sidewalks 20 years

Unearned revenue

Uncamned revenucs arise when potential revenue is received by the Town from various granting agencies
before it has a legal claim to them or when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures, i.e., contract and grant receipts received in excess of expenditures incurred are recognized
as uncamed revenuc. In subscquent periods, when the revenue recognition criteria is met, or when the
Town has a legal claim to the resources, the liability or unearned revenue is removed from the balance
sheet and the revenue is recognized.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Deferred outflows/inflows of resonrces

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government currently has one item which
qualifics for reporting in this catcgory. This item is a pension related item reported on the government-
wide financial statements. Sce note 8 for more information.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government currently has one item which qualifics
for reporting in this category. This item is a pension related item reported on the government-wide
financial statements. See note 8 for more information.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position of the Arizona Statc Retircment System (ASRS) and additions to/deductions from the plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by ASRS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Net pasition flow assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (c.g., restricted bond
or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net
position and unrestricted — net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy
to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund balance flow assumptions

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental
fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applicd. It is the Town's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted
before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first,
followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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Fund balance policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The Town itself can cstablish limitations
on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment
(assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposcs determined by a formal action of the Town’s highest level of decision-making authority. The
governing council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town that can, by adoption of
an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation
imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another
ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Town for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Town Manager is authorized to
assign amount to a specific purpose in accordance with the Town’s budget policy. The council may also
assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue
and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments
generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken
for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to
cither remove or revise a commitment.

Revenues and expenditures/expenses

Program revenues

Amouats reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privilcges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or scgment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific
purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues.

Taxes

The Town does not currently have any primary or secondary real property tax levies.

Normally, property tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the year collected or if collected within 60
days thereafter unless they are prepaid.

24



TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continucd

Compensated absences

For governmental funds, amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that are not expected
to be liquated with cxpendable available financial resources arc reported as liabilitics in the government-
wide statement of net position and as expenses in the government-wide statement of activities. No
expenditures are reported for these amounts in the fund financial statements. Currently, the Town has no
full time employces and no liabilities for compensated abscnces.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requircs management to make cstimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilitics and disclosurc of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those cstimates.

Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between total governmental fund balances
and net position of governmental activities as reported in the govemnment-wide statement of net position.
This difference primarily resulis from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net position
versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets. The details of this
difference are reported in the reconciliation on page 15.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. These differences
arc the result of converting from the current resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis for
governmental fund statements to the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis used
for government-wide statements. The details of these differences are reported in the reconciliation on
page 17.



TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statemecnts
June 30, 2016

Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Stewardship, compliance, and accountability arc key concepts in defining the responsibilities of the
Town. The use of budgets and monitoring of cquity status facilitate the Town’s compliance with legal
requirements.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Town Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. In accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes, the Town Manager submits a proposed budgct
for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1 to the Town Council. The operating
budget includes proposed cxpenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming
year.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment.

3. Prior to the third Monday in August, the expenditure limitation for the Town is legally
enacted through passage of an ordinance. To ensure compliance with the expenditure
limitation, a uniform expenditure report must be filed with the State each year. This report,
issucd under a separate cover, reconciles total Town expenditures from the audited financial
statements to total expenditures for reporting in accordance with the State’s uniform
cxpenditure reporting system (A.R.S. §41-1279.07).

4. The Town follows a voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation that was adopted on
August 26, 2014,

5. Expenditures may not legally exceed the expenditure limitation of all fund types as a whole,
For management purposes, the Town adopts a budget by department for the General Fund
and in total by fund for other funds. The Town Manager, subject to Town Council approval,
may at any time transfer any unencumbered appropriation balance or portion thereof between
a department or activity. The adopted budget cannot be amended in any way without Town
Council approval.

6. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General and Special Revenuc Funds on essentially the same modified accrual basis of
accounting uscd to record actual revenues and cxpenditures.

The Town is subject to the State of Arizona's Spending Limitation Law for Towns and Citics. This law
does not permit the Town to spend more than budgeted revenues plus the carry-over unrestricted cash
balance from the prior fiscal year. The limitation is applicd to the total of the combined funds. The Town
complicd with this law during the ycar.
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Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability, Continued

Expenditures over Appropriations

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. The individual
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual reports as
listed in the table of contents present all of the departments which incurred an excess of
expenditures/cxpenses over appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2016, if any.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not
employed by the Town.

Note 4. Deposits and Investments

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the statement of net position follows:

Cash and investments 5 9,827,821
Total cash and investments S 9.827,821

Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the govemment’s deposit may not be
returned to it. The Town does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2016, cash
on hand was $0, and the carrying amount of the Town's deposits was $9,827,821. As of June 30, 2016,
the Town’s bank balance was $9,940,903 and $3,552,079 of that balance was exposed to custodial credit
risk because it was uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent, but not in the Town’s name.
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued

Investments

The Arizona State Treasurer's Office operates the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The LGIP
is available for investment of funds administered by any Arizona Public Treasurer.

The LGIP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Deposits in the LGIP arc not insured
or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Arizona, and participants share proportionally in any rcalized gain
or losses on investments.

The provisions of State law (A.R.S. 35-323) govern the investment of funds in excess of $100,000.
A.R.S. 35-323 allows for investments in certificates of deposit, interest bearing savings accounts,
repurchase agreements with a maximum maturity of 180 days, pooled investment funds established by the
State Treasurer, obligations guaranteed by the United States, bonds of the Statc of Arizona or other local
municipalitics, commercial paper of prime quality that is rated “P-1” by Moody’s investors or “A-1" by
Standard and Poor’s rating service, and bonds, debentures or notes that are issucd by corporations
organized and doing business in the United States subject to certain restrictions. For investments of less
than $100,000, procedures as specified by local ordinance or resolution must be followed.

As of June 30, 2016 the Town did not hoid any funds in the LGIP.

As of June 30, 2016 the Town had the following deposits and investments:

Weighted
Fair Credit Average
Value Rating (1) Maturity (Years)
Cash on deposit S 6,275,742 N/A NA
Money market fund 48,484 N/A N/A
Certificates of deposit 3,503,595 N/A less than 1 to 5

Total Fair Value $  9.827.821

(1) Ratings arc provided where applicable to indicate associated Credit Risk. N/A indicates
not applicable.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Town’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing
interest rates is to comply with the provisions of State law (A.R.S. 35- 323) which requires that the
Town’s investment portfolio maturities do not exceed five years from the time of purchase.
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments, Continued

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Town's policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with State law (A.R.S. 35-323)
which limits investment in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top ratings issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investor Services.

Fair value measurements

As noted above, the Town holds investments that are measured at fair value on a reoccurring basis. The
Town categorizes its fair valuc mcasurements within the fair value hicrarchy cstablished by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quotes prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The certificates of deposit and money market fund, as listed above, are valued using inputs other than
quoted prices, that are observable (Level 2 inputs).

This section intentionaily left blank.
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Note 5. Capital Assets

The following table summarizes the changes to capital asscts for governimental activities during the year.

Governmental Activitics:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture, cquipment & vehicles

Total capital asscts, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture, equipment & vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activitics capital assets, net

Balance Balance
6/30/2015 Additions Deletions 6/30/2016
s 53,347 $ 636,633 5 - 5 690,000
53,347 636,653 - 690,000
676,843 - - 676,343
525,716 2,315 - 528,031
184,471 40,653 (2,061) 223,063
1,387,030 42,968 (2,061} 1,427,937
(54,7137) (20,158) - (74,895)
(59,831) (28,080) - (87,911)
(36,476) {24,637) 927 (60,180)
(151,044} (72,875) 927 {222,992)
1,235,986 (29,907) (1,134) 1,204,945
$ 1,289,333 S 606,746 s {1,134) S 1,894,945

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public works/streets
Parks & recreation

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

S 29,966
23,303
19,606
S 72,875
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Note 6. Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilitics for the year ended Junc 30, 2016:

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: 6/30/2015 Additions Retirements 6/30/2016
Net pension liability 3 - § 325465 S - 5 325465
Total long-term liabilitics $ - 8§ 325465 % - § 325465
Note 7. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

As of June 30, 2016, interfund reccivables and payables that resulted from various interfund transactions
were as follows:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 9,400 $ -
STILO Fund - 9,400
5 9,400 8 9,400

Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures oceur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and
(3) payments between funds are made. All amounts are expected to be repaid within one year.
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Note 8. Retirement and Pension Plans

The Town contributes to the plan described below. The plan is a component unit of the State of Arizona.

Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS)

The Town contributes to the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) as described below. The plan is a
component unit of the Statc of Arizona.

Plan Description — The Town participates in the Arizona State Rectirement System. The ASRS
administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, a cost-sharing multiple-
cmployer defined benefit health insurance premium bencfit (OPEB) plan, and a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona State Retirement System Board
governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Titlc 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The
ASRS issucs a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report is available on its website at www.azars.gov.

Benefits provided — The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, long-term
disability, and survivor benefits. State statute cstablishes benefit terms. Retirement benefits arc calculated
on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

Initial Membership Date Initial Membership Date
Before July 1, 2011 On or After July 1, 2011
Y ears of service and Sum of years and age cquals 80 30 ycars age 55
age required to receive 10 years age 62 25 years age 60
benefit 5 years age 50* 10 ycars age 62
any yecars age 65 5 years age 50*
any years age 65
Final average salary is Highest 36 consecutive months Highest 60 consecutive months
based on of last 120 months of last 120 months
Benefit percent per 2.1%t0 2.3% 2.1% 10 2.3%
year of service

* With actuarially reduced benefits.

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject to
automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning. Members with a membership
datc on or after September 13, 2013, arc not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are
payable upon a member's death. For retired members, the survivor benefit is determined by the retircment
benefit option chosen. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the member's account
balance that includes the member's contributions and employer's contributions, plus interest carned.
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Note 8. Retirement and Pension Plans, Continued

Contributions — In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active member
and cmployer contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer contribution rates
are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2016, active ASRS members were
required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.47 percent (11.35 percent for
retirement and 0.12 percent for long-term disability} of the members' annual covered payroll, and the
Town was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.47 percent (10.85
percent for retirement, 0.50 percent for health insurance premium benefit, and 0.12 percent for long-term
disability) of the active members' annual covered payroll.

The Town's contributions for the current and 2 preceding fiscal years, all of which were equal to the
required contributions, were as follows:

Year Ended Retirement Health Benefit Long-Term
Junc 30, Fund Supplement Fund  Disability Fund
2014 S - 3 - 3 -
2015 24,093 1,305 265
2016 19,225 886 213

Pension liability — At Junc 30, 2016, the Town reported a liability of $325,465 for its proportionate share
of the ASRS' net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll
forward the total pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, to the measurement
date of June 30, 2015. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Town’s actual
contributions to the plan relative to the total of all participating employers' contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2015. The Town's proportion measured as of June 30, 2015, was 0.002090 percent, which
was an increase of 0.002090 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014,

Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources — For the year ended June 30, 2016, the
Town recognized pension expense for ASRS of $117,200 in the statement of activities. At June 30, 2016,
the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:
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Deferred
Outflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 8,881 $ 17,055
Changes in assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual carnings on
pension plan investments - 10,430
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportional share of contributions 244,900 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 19,225 -
Total b 273,006 § 27,485

The $19,225 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions resulting from Town
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to ASRS pensions will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

Deferred

Outflows

Year Ended {Inflows) of

June 30 Resources
2017 S 104,411
2018 99,629
2019 14,727
2020 7,529
2021 -
Thercaftcr -
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Notc 8. Retirement and Pension Plans, Continued

Actuarial Assumptions — The significant actuarial assumptions used to mcasurc the total pension
liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date June 30,2014
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of retum 3%

Projected salary increases 3-6.75%

Inflation 3%

Permanent benefit increase Included

Mortality rates 1994 GAM Scale BB

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2012,

The long-term expected ratc of return on ASRS pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for cach major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
target allocation and best cstimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major assct class are
summarized in the following table:

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis

Long-Term

Expected

Real Return Portfolio

Target Asset Arithmetic Real Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Basis Return
Equity 58% 6.79% 3.94%
Fixed income 25% 3.70% 0.93%
Commodities 2% 3.93% 0.08%
Real Estate 10% 4.25% 0.42%
Multi-assct 5% 341% 0.17%
Totals 100% 5.54%
Inflation 3.25%

Expccted arithmetic nominal return 8.79%

35



TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 8. Retirement and Pension Plans, Continued

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measurc the ASRS total pension liability was 8 percent, which
is less than the long-term expected rate of return of 8.79 perceat. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made based
on the actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board's funding policy, which cstablishes the
contractually required rate under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applicd to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Scasitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate —
The following table presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the Town’s proportionatc share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7 percent) or 1
percentage point higher (9 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decreasc Discount Rate 1% Increasc
{7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
Proportionate share of
Net pension (asset) / liability $ 426,470 $ 325,465 § 256,243

Pension plan fiduciary net position — Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report

Note 9. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
crrors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Town's insurance protection is provided by the Arizona
Municipal Risk Retention Pool, of which the Town is a participating member. The limit for general
liability, professional liability, auto liability and physical damage coverage is for $2,000,000 per
occurrence on a claims made basis.

The Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool is structured such that members’ premiums arc bascd on an
actuarial review that will provide adequate reserves to allow the pool to meet its expected financial
obligations. The poo! has the authority to assess its member’s additional premiums should reserves and
annual premiums be insufficient to meet the pool’s obligations.
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Note 10. Contingencies

The Town is involved with various matters of litigation from year to year. It is the opinion of Town
officials that these cases will cither be handled by the Town's insurance coverage or that they will not
have a material effect on the Town’s financial condition.

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount if any, of the expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this tithe, aithough the Town does not anticipate any such amounts.

Note 11. Stabilization Arrangement

The Town has established a General Fund reserve policy to set aside funds that may be needed in the
event of an emergency or other unknown event that may adversely affect the Town’s financial condition.
An emergency reserve of $250,000, an operating reserve of $750,000 and a budget stabilization reserve of
$500,000 must be maintained before any expenditure can be authorized. The trigger amount for usage of
the operating reserve and the budget stabilization reserve is $300,000. As of June 30, 2016 the total
reserve is $1,500,000 and is included in the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
June 30, 2016

Arizona State Retirement System

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Mecasurement Date)

2016
(2015)

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.002090%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) S 325,465
Covered employee payroll $ 177,108
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as
a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 183.77%
Plan hiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 68.35%

Note: The Town implemented GASB 68 in fiscal year 2015. Information prior to
2015 is not available.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Schedule of Pension Contributions
June 30, 2016

Arizona State Retirement System

Reporting Fiscal Year
{Measurement Date)

2016

(2015)
Contractually required contribution* $ 20,958
Contributions in relation to the contractually required
contribution (20,324)
Lontribution aeticiency (excess) 3 634
Covered employec payroll $ 177,108
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employec
payroll 11.83%

* Represents annualized contributions

Note: The Town implemented GASB 68 in fiscal ycar 2015. Information prior to
2015 is not available.
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

FOR THE FOLLOWING MAJOR FUNDS:

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which arc
not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Major Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenucs that are legally restricted to expenditures
for a particular purpose.

s Highway User Revenue Fund (Streets) — This fund is used to account for the Town’s share of
motor fucl tax revenues which are restricted for the maintaining, repairing, and upgrading of

streets.

» Grants Fund — This fund is used to account for federal and state grants and other contributions
that are restricted for specific use
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund
Budget & Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:

Taxes:
City sales tax
Total Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Fees:
Licenses and permits
Building permits
Total Licenses, Fees and Permits

Intergovernmental:
State sales tax
Urban revenue sharing
Total Intergovernmental

Interest:
Interest revenue
Total Interest

Other Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue
Total Other Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
$ 3,000,000 S 3,000,000 S 3,521,895 5 521,895
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,521,895 521,895
350 350 470 120
25,000 25,000 32,033 7,033
25,350 25,350 32,503 7,153
53,300 53,300 52,692 (608)
180,600 180,600 180,600 -
233,900 233,900 233,292 (608)
10,000 10,000 58,231 48,231
10,000 10,000 58,231 48,231
150,000 150,000 200 {149,800)
150,000 150,000 200 {149,800)
3,419,250 3,419,250 3,846,121 426,871
{continued)



TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund

Budget & Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

EXPENDITURES

General Government:
Mayor & Council
City Manager
Legal
Planning & Development
Magistrate
Contingency
Total General Government

Public Safety:
Sheriff
Total Public Safety

Parks & Recreation
Parks & Recreation
Total Parks & Recreation

Facilities & Grounds:
Facilities & Grounds
Total Facilities & Grounds

Capital Outlay:
Capital Outlay
Total Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
100,700 100,700 58,356 42344
411,500 411,500 404,166 7.334
235,000 235,000 76,854 158,146
372,500 372,500 133,548 238,952
21,500 21,500 23,472 (1,972)
300,000 300,000 69,425 230,575
1,441,200 1,441,200 765,821 675,379
685,000 685,000 616,808 68,192
685,000 685,000 616,808 68,192
152,500 152,500 83,306 69,194
152,500 152,500 83,306 69,194
83,500 83,500 66,613 16,887
83,500 83,500 66,613 16,887
1,009,300 1,009,300 192,902 816,398
1,009,300 1,009,300 192,902 816,398
3,371,500 3,371,500 1,725,450 1,646,050
47,750 47,750 2,120,671 2,072,921

- - (233,670) (233,670)

- - {233,670) (233,670)

47,750 47,750 1,887,001 1,839,251
7,747,156 7,747,156 7,747,156 -
$ 7,794.906 S 7.794.906 $ 9,634.157 $ 1,839,251
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Highway User Revenue Special Revenue Fund
Budget & Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue S 84,750 $ 84750 S 85832 § 1,082
Total revenue 84,750 84,750 85,832 1,082
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works/strcets 82,500 82,500 28,492 54,008
Total expenditures 82,500 82,500 28,492 54,008
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 2,250 2,250 57,340 55,090
Fund balance, beginning of year 210,885 210,885 210,885 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 213,135 $ 213,135 S 268,225 S 55,090
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TOWN OF TUSAYAN, ARIZONA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Grants Special Revenue Fund
Budget & Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenue
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Parks and recreation
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeled Amounts

Original Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budﬂ

S 925,000 S 925,000 S 230,309

5 (694,691)

925,000 925,000 230,309 (694,691)
925,000 925,000 463,979 461,021
925,000 925,000 463,979 461,021

- 3 (233,670) (233,670)
- - 233,670 233,670
- L 233,670 233,670
S 3 us - s =S -
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OTHER COMMUNICATIONS FROM INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

49



This page intentionally left blank

50



MEMEERS

CHAD B_ATkinson, CPA PHILLF S PEINE,CPA
' H INTON B URDI CK KRIS J. BRAUNSERGER , CPA StEvEN D PALMER, CPA
RoBeRT S. Cox,CPA MicHAEL K. SPILKER, CPA
Topo B.FELTHER, CPA KEwvIN L. STEPHENS, CPA
K.MARK FROST,CPA MARK E. TICHEMOR, CPA
CPAS &' ADVISORS MORRIS J PEACOCK, CPA MicHAEL J. TORGERSON, CPA

Independent Auditors® Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Aunditing Standards

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Tusayan, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Amecrica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, cach major fund, and thc aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Tusayan,
Arizona as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprisc Town of Tusayan, Arizona ’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thercon dated March 14, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Tusayan,
Arizona's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriatc in the circumstances for the purposc of cxpressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Tusayan,
Arizona’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the cffectiveness of Town of
Tusayan, Arizona's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatcments on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less

severc than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the separately
issucd findings and recommendations letter dated March 14, 2017 that we consider to be significant

deficiencies.
2011-01 Year-End Accounting and Financial Statement Controls
2011-02 Segregation of Duties
2011-03 Policy and Procedure Manual
CEDAR CITY - FLAGSTAFF - HURRICANE - MESQUITE - PHOENIX - RICHFIELD - ST GEORGE
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining rcasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with thosc
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purposc of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the cffectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purposc.

it bty PLLC
HintonBurdick, PLLC

Flagstaff, Arizona
March 14, 2017



MENBERS

CHAD B ATKINSON, CPA PHLUP S PEINE, CPA
' H N TO B u R D l C Kriz J BRAUNBERGER , CPA STEVEN D PALMER, CPA
A l N K RoBERT S Cox,CPA MicHAEL K SPILKER, CPA
C P Tooo B FELTHER, CPA Kevin L STEPHENS, CPA
K. MaRK FROST,CPA MaRK E TICRENOR, CPA
AS & ADV I SORS MoRRIS J PEACOCK, CPA MICHAEL J . TORGERSON, CPA

Independent Auditors’ Report on
State Legal Compliance

The Honorable Mayor and
Town Council
Tusayan, Arizona

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Town of Tusayan, Arizona for the year ended June
30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated March 14, 2017. Our audit also included test work on
the Town of Tusayan’s compliance with selected requirements identified in the State of Arizona Revised
Statutes and the Arizona State Constitution including, but not limited to, Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2.

The management of the Town of Tusayan is responsible for the Town's compliance with all requirements
identified above. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with thosc requirements
based on our audit; accordingly, we make the following statements:

The Town of Tusayan has cstablished scparate funds to account for Highway User Revenue
funds. Highway user revenue fund monies received by the Town of Tusayan pursuant to Title 28,
Chapter 18, Article 2 and other dedicated state transportation revenucs received during the current
fiscal year appear to have been used solely for authorized purposes. The funds are administered in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Sources of revenues available and
fund balances are reflected in the individual fund financial statements.

Our opinion regarding the Town’s compliance with annual expenditure limitations has been
issued scparately with the Town’s Annual Expenditure Limitation Report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occurred. An audit includes cxamining,
on a test basis, evidence about the Town's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Town of Tusayan complied, in all material respects, with the requirements identified
above for the year ended June 30, 2016.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of the applicable compliance
requirements identified in the Arizona Revised Statutes as noted above and the results of that testing
based on the state requirements. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

it F iy PLLC
HintonBurdick, PLLC

Flagstaff, Arizona
March 14, 2017
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TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA AND EVENT CALENDAR

May 3, 2017 — Council Meeting — 6pm

o Possible approval of Sports Complex construction agreement (if not on 4-19-17)

o Ten X Housing development layout concept and solar issues discussion with Westland
Resources

o Possible approval of a Floodplain Ordinance

o Discussion of Century Link options and past issues

May 16, 2017 — Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting — 6pm

o Possible approval of Zoning Code revisions

May 17, 2017 — Council Meeting — 6pm

o Possible approval of Zoning Code revisions
o Possible approval of a paving contract for Town Hall and housing
o Fiber development coordination with Grand Canyon Schools agreement

Revised 3/2/16
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